10.

)

district five

OF LEXINGTON & RICHLAND COUNTIES

AMENDED AGENDA
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
RIVER SPRINGS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL'’S THEATER
OCTOBER 8, 2012

Call to order at 6:00 p.m.
Enter executive session to consider the following:

a. Selected employment items (Exhibit A)
b. Receipt of legal advice

Welcoming remarks at 7:00 p.m. — Robert Gantt
Invocation — Adam Williams, St. Andrews Presbyterian Church

Pledge of Allegiance — Drew Delk and Harrison Yarbrough, students at
River Springs Elementary School

School Board Spotlight
Approval of the agenda

Welcome and brief overview of River Springs Elementary School by
Melanie Cohen, principal

Superintendent’s report (45 minutes)
a. Superintendent
(1)  Vision 2015: Update #10
(2) Update: The Center for Advanced Technical Studies

b. Public Information
(1) Update on the status of school board policy revisions

Public participation*

www.lex5.k12.sc.us
1020 Dutch Fork Road « Irmo, South Carolina 29063 - (803) 732-8000



http:www.lex5.k12.sc.us

ACTION AGENDA

11. items considered in executive session

12.  First reading approval of proposed revisions to “I” policies: add new
Administrative Rule ADF-R "School Wellness", changes/revisions to policy
JJE "Student Fundraising Activities", and changes/revision to policy JJE-R
"Student Fundraising Activities" (Exhibit B)

13.  Approval of the minutes of the September 24, 2012 board meeting (3
minutes)

DISCUSSION AGENDA

14.  Proposed revisions to “I” policies: replace policy IHG "Secondary
Education" with new policy IKG "Secondary Education", replace policy IHF
"Graduation Requirements" with new policy IKF "Graduation
Requirements”, replace policy IHF-R “Graduation
Requirements/Diplomas" with new policy IKF-R "Graduation
Requirements", and add new policy IHAQ "Career/Transition to Work
Education" (Exhibit C)

15.  Adjourn by 9:30 p.m.
(Any items to be submitted by board members for the record must be
turned in within 15 minutes of the adjournment)

FOR YOUR INFORMATION

16.  The next regular scheduled board meeting will be October 22, 2012 at The
Center for Advanced Technical Studies.

*The Board welcomes and encourages public participation and includes an
opportunity during its meetings for the public to do so. We respectfully ask that
you adhere to the procedures and the decorum provided in board policy BEDH
“Public Participation at Meetings”. We ask that you sign-up to speak before the
meeting begins and that you provide us your name, address and topic of input.
Your comments should be limited to three minutes. Questions asked during
public participation and placed in writing will receive a written response in a
timely manner. Comments, questions and opinions are appreciated but should
always be presented in a manner that reflects the respect and dignity expected
by our community. Personal attacks on members of the community, the Board,
or the staff of the school system will not be allowed.




()

district five

OF LEXINGTON & RICHLAND COUNTIES

Minutes/ September 24, 2012

The Board of Trustees of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties met at Oak
Pointe Elementary School with the following members present:

Mr. Robert Gantt, Chairman

Mrs. Beth Burn Watson, Vice Chairman
Mrs. Ellen Baumgardner, Secretary

Mrs. Jan Hammond

Mrs. Kim Murphy

Mr. Jim Turner

Mr. Ed White (via telephone)

Dr. Stephen Hefner, District Superintendent

The following staff were in attendance:

Ms. Helen Anderson, Chief Instructional Services Officer

Dr. Angela Bain, Chief Human Resource Services Officer

Dr. Karl Fulmer, Chief Financial Services Officer

Mr. Michael Harris, Director of Student Services

Mr. Keith McAlister, Director of New Design and Construction
Mr. Mark Bounds, Public Information Officer

Chairman Robert Gantt called the meeting to order.
An employee grievance was conducted.
Chairman Robert Gantt gave welcoming remarks.

The Invocation was given by Mark Bounds. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Andrew Talkish,
a member of the student government at Oak Pointe Elementary School.

During the superintendent’s report, Dr. Stephen Hefner gave a brief presentation on SAT scores;
Mike Gallagher gave a report on the bond sale; Dr. Karl Fulmer gave a report on the monthly
financial reports (Exhibit B), the 8% capital projects (Exhibit C), and a bond referendum
expenditure summary (Exhibit D); and Chris Whitley gave a construction report (Exhibit E).

During the public participation, Ed Yates spoke regarding various topics; and Danny Brabham
spoke regarding written and verbal abuse of the superintendent and personnel by board
members and the public.

Helen Anderson presented proposed revisions to “I" policies: add new Administrative Rule ADF-R
“School Wellness”, changes/revisions to JJE “Student Fundraising Activities”, changes/revision to
policy JJE-R “Student Fundraising Activities" (Exhibit G).

A = Absent
AB = Abslain
N =No
X=Yes

Jex5.k12.sc.us
WU, G R = Recuse

1020 Dutch Fork Road * Irmo, South Carolina 29063 = (803) 732-8000



<IvomcCcg
ITmz21nmcCcH

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

——H4Z>r0
mH4—I=

UOZOZZ>»IT
ZOoOw—HA>»=

IMZOID>rOEC>PrT@

|
Meeting of September 24, 2012 ‘

>
=
>
r
x
x
>

M. Hammond S. Watson

Enter executive session to consider the following: a)

M. Hammond S. Baumgardner X X X X X X A
Approve the agenda
M. Watson S. Baumgardner X X X X X X X

M.  Watson S. Baumgardner X X X No X X X

In the grievance matter that we heard in open session
earlier this evening, | move that we uphold the
administration's decision

M. Hammond S. Baumgardner X X X No X X X

M. Watson S. Baumgardner X X X No X X X
Approve the minutes of the September 10, 2012 board

meeting

M. Baumgardner S. Watson X X X X/ X X A

Adjourn at 9:30 p.m.

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N = No
X=Yes

R = Recuse




Gmail - Capital Budget Report and Bond Referendum Expenditure S... https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=9a16bbe8b0& view=pt&se..

3

"0 - Ll 28 +

Gl"l 1

Kim Murphy <movingmountainskwm@gmail.com>

Capital Budget Report and Bond Referendum Expenditure Summary

Karl Fulmer <kefulmer@lexrich5.org> Mon, Sep 24, 2012 at 9:44 AM
To: Kim Murphy <movingmountainskwm@gmail.com>

Cc: Karl Fulmer <kefulmer@lex5.k12.sc.us>, Superintendent Steve Hefner <swhefner@gmail.com>, Stephen Hefner
<shefner@lexrich5.org>, "Gantt, Robert" <ganttrw@bellsouth.net>, Robert Ganit <rgantt@Ilex5.k12.sc.us>, Beth
Hutchison <EFH@sc.rm.com>, Beth Watson <bhwatson@lex5.k12.sc.us>, "bhwatson@lexrich5.org"
<bhwatson@lexrich5.org>, "ebaumgar@lexrich5.org" <ebaumgar@lexrich5.org>, Ellen Baumgardner
<EBaumgar@lex5.k12.sc.us>, Ellen Baumgardner <ebaumgardner@sc.rr.com>, Ed White <ekw@sc.rr.com=>, Ed
White <EWhite@lex5.k12.sc.us>, "ewhite@lexrich5.org" <ewhite@lexrich5.org>, Jan Hammond

<jhammond@lex5.k12.sc.us>, JanH08 <janh08@aol.com>, Jim Turner <jturner@lex5.k12.sc.us>, jimturnjr
<jimturnjr@gmail.com>, Kim Murphy <kwmurphy@]lex5.k12.sc.us>

Mrs. Murphy,

The Capital Budget Report included as Exhibit C is provided by project rather than by school account number.
:;_-E ¢ . The format of the report was developed following discussion with the Board about how the information could be
g'@% % best used and understood. If the Board wishes for the staff to change from the current format being used, we will
2 ‘é g‘g be happy to consider the Board's request and adjust the report to the extent possible within the limitations of the
o bW District's financial reporting software.
EF 85
f.g%?, gy The estimated cost for completing each bond referendum project now under construction is the budgeted cost
3 ‘5:\_%_% shown in the bond project report as approved by the Board. Please note that the only projects currently over
gé % 8 budget are the Irmo Elementary School Project and the Chapin High School Project.
2585
§ § % E The Irmo Elementary School Project was expected to be over budget. Mr. McAlister has, on numerous occasions,
£Rog
amo

updated the Board on this project pointing out that we expected it to be over budget. In fact, when the District
elected to construct the current new facility, the decision was made knowing that the project would likely be over

budget. If the Board wishes, Mr. Whitley can address this project in more detail at the Board Meeting on Monday
night during the monthly update.

The Chapin High School Project is over budget because of a delay in awarding the bids due to the wetlands,
waste water and storm water litigation. Had this project been awarded on time, the cost of the project would have

been within budget. If the Board wishes, Mr. Whitley can address this project in more detail at the Board Meeting
on Monday night during the monthly update.

ed with

L£

Capital Budget Reports and Bond Referendum Expenditure Reporis are presented on a quarterly basis as

requested by the Board. In addition to the quarterly reports, a monthly update is given. The leadership is
providing reports to the Board as directed.

nglud

-

=184
meeting, al the request of Board member

\y
N With regard to your question about remaining referendum dollars that are unspent, please keep in mind that the
" Z Board has additional projects pending approval.
R
E po |
ZE
m
Z4 on Fri, Sep 21, 2012 at 1:40 PM, Kim Murphy <movingmountainskwm@amail.com> wrote:
Dear Mr. Gantt, Ms, Watson, Ms, Baumgardner, Dr. Fulmer and Dr. Hefner,
| have begun to review out board packet that was received last night. Can you please provide the Capital
Budget Report shown in Exhibit C in order by school account number, so the board can see the work that is
taking place at each school?
%
.\ Also Mr tTurner and | have requested from you on numerous occasions the construction manager's estimated
/ cost of completing each bond referendum project now under construction,.. as they stand now. Are we
 of 3 ltem “For The Record” requested by Kim Murphy for attachment to the Minutes.
0

9/24/2012 4:15 PV



Gmail - Capital Budget Report and Bond Referendum Expenditure S...

20f2

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/7ui=2&ik=9a16bbe8b0& view=pt&se..

over-budget or under-budget on them? We should have a monthly update on this. | don't understand why the
leadership has refused to provide this important financial information to the board members.

According to the information shown in Exhibit D, as of 8/31/12, there is $55 million remaining in referendum

/(/ dollars that is unspent and potentially available to spend on the currently under construction referendum
Y

projects. It is important to know where we stand... whether we have enough funds to complete the projects that
we have started. It is also important that the board be informed if it is anticipated that there will be referendum
dollars remaining unspent, once the projects under construction are completed.

It would be helpful to have this information today, so that | can

Thanks...
Kim

Kim Murphy 446-6565
154 Old Laurel Lane
Chapin, SC 29036

Karl E. Fulmer, Ed.D.
Chief Financial Services Officer
Office: 803-476-8130
Cell: 803-603-5864
Fax: 803-476-8237

review it before the board meeting.

Aﬁwhmehtﬂ_%mm & 1nclu§fd with

the minutes of the _Z=24{
meeting, at the request ©

f Board member

k_‘;,.\ e L\-"\

pursua

and Beard Pelicy BEDG.
dlid not approve, dis2pprove,
act upon the contents of this

item “For The Record” requested by Kim Mur

nilo 5.C. Code Ahn, §30-4-90(2)(4)

The Board majority
or othenwise
attachment.

phy for attachment to the Minutes

9/24/2012 4:15 PN



%\1;}"4"‘\ ml{/ ."'\/(
" " = 4
F\'@?’Hid ['Trf’\,f Iz ﬁ\f “rie Kz (o
""’\.7(3./""&: 1""*— L_& _}_L'\‘.+\é

S hes) Boatrd /’r-s% et HA’%@L
h-ﬂw.‘ajj — f/’\u iy Reralh

T _anA D‘Zgg.g#”)ﬁ s Jumaf.
(‘,o n.‘“ leamt—’dL"' (19,4 Sf"]OUH
ke using TeKpaiier Fricis

U ot Q:Efﬁ EQ @g q!{wcﬂf e 1;1‘1'@
U clags oo s nsvead ok
S Board tmewloevs 1vios
—r e Glale. '

}’*m; Cﬁ&ﬂ‘@_ﬁaﬁ_@’“_- dﬁﬁf;_
ViAo Vidyd cenbevenelng o

| Remiinave ﬁ*@m&a@i&g}i%i

i

5 ight e a din _g?pa_twﬁgz‘_‘_

Item “For The R ¥ i
e Record” requested by Kim Murphy for attachment to the Minutes

A\‘Lachmanl_di_ is inclufe? ﬂ'

the minutes of the
meeting, at the request of Board rember

pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. §s&h -60(a)(4)
and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or atherwise
act upen the cantents of this attachment.



'tem “For The Record” requested by Kim Murphy for attachment to the Minutes.

Homeschooled student fights to join JROTC // Vs / N2

Posted: Aug 21, 2012 9:41 PM EDT Updated: Aug 31, 2012 9:41 PM EDT Loag 2l 12T | :?

Attachrne*u_LL Includad wil'-n 7 O DV ad 9.... 4 N\iv »"JL" F A

the minutes of the = W . ,

meeting, at the request uf Bcard member ) ) s g o
M -2 I v Expr 4t SNV LS

pursuant 1o 5.C. Code Ann. §30-4-90(a) (4) o s

and Board Policy BEDG. The Board maijority 5. A C A ey

did not aporove, disapprove, or otherwise ‘J L Vil .

act upon the contents of this attachment. i HAa 1 P A “J’_—-_ A ~2

COLUMBIA, SC (WIS) - 6tz A B i i zz‘--‘.w{'f
One Midlands school believes a new state law does not apply to them and that has a local family up in arms. '

The family says the district told their homeschooled son he could not be a part of the JROTC program because it is a credited course
and not an extracurricular activity.

Edgar Brown is a classroom of one, although it doesn't feel that way.
"I'm so involved in volunteering in my community that I get exhausted from just being around people," Brown said.

Brown believes Junior ROTC would add to his studies, something only available at public school out of reach until Gov. Nikki
Haley's signature yesterday.

"It was a great landmark, a great feeling to know that they were actually opening up opportunities that have been closed for so
long," said Brown.

Not so fast, according to Lexington District-five.

"Because Aerospace science is one is a credit bearing course offered by district five, the course is not an extra-circular activity,"
Brown said, reading the note from the district.

"Basically, that's final, you have no chance and unless you want to leave homeschooling, which you're family has determined it's
best for you as a student."

Brown's not alone though.

"We've had two students that have asked us about Junior ROTC and in both cases we've looked at it closely and denied those
requests," said Mark Bounds, a representative of Lexington-Richland 5.

Denied, despite the new state law that overrides the district policy requiring students enroll in at least eight classes to take credited
courses.

"We're excited about students participating in arts clubs, book clubs, bowling, broadcasting, chess clubs, character ed, dance, frisbee
clubs," Bounds said. "I could go on."

Those don't interest Brown, who's not just fighting for himself.
"In the long run, [ see all these generations after me benefiting,” Brown said.

Brown's not ready to close the book, just yet, and will likely end up in a courtroom -- what could be the most valuable lesson of all.

Copyright 2012 WIS, All rights reserved.



Item “For The Record” requested by Kim Murphy for attachment to the Minutes.

Homeschooled student admitted to Irmo JROTC

Posted: Sep 11, 2012 5:43 PM EDT Updated: Sep 21, 2012 5:44 PM EDT

-

Attashmant ‘; s Included with

the minutes of the T =2/ —/2_

meeting, at the request of Board member
K 1%12%" ]

pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §30-4-80(a)(4)

and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority

did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise

act upon the contents of this attachment,

IRMO, SC (WIS) -

Who says persistence doesn't pay? It did for home school student Edgar Brown, who's finally been allowed to join the
JROTC program at Irmo High School.

It's a victory, but not for the new Equal Access to Interscholastic Activities Act. In a letter we obtained, Lexington-
Richland District 5 still denied Brown access regardless of the new law. It was a loophole that got him in, much to the
dismay of State Superintendent Mick Zais.

"The education establishment has resisted this law in South Carolina for 19 years," Zais said.

While Brown's now included, the Palmetto Family Council is working with others who've struggled with academic
requests. It's a struggle that continues.

"The mindset that would exclude a child because they're home schooled, I just don't understand that whole mindset,"
Zais said.

Molly Spearman, executive director at the South Carolina Association of School Administrators, admits they weren't in
favor of this legislation, but now that it's law they're working with school administrators.

It's not easy, says Spearman, because districts get no funding for these new part-time students.

We went to Attorney General Alan Wilson for his opinion, and he says, "We believe that the law should be read broadly,
permitting home school, Governor's School and charter school student participation in the widest extent."

His interpretation includes credited courses like JROTC and band.

"It seems like you would open your arms and embrace them and say come be a part of our family, oh and by the way you
might have a good experience here in this school and become a full-time student in our school. What they're doing it
makes no sense whatsoever," Zais said.

The Palmetto Family Council hopes those districts who've put up resistance will start following the law. They're not
looking for a favor from district, they're looking for compliance.

Copyright 2012 115, All rights reserved.



Item “For The Record” requested by Kim Murphy for attachment to the Minutes.

The school board and the tape recorder

This is a story demonstrating how one member of a board or council — armed with a tape
recorder — can make government more open.

Several years ago the Lexington-Richland School District 5 sued Kim Murphy to enjoin her
from recording the public meetings of a committee of which she was a member. A circuit
judge granted the injunction which was quickly vacated by the S.C. Court of Appeals
because the FOIA provides that any meeting of a public body may be recorded by any
person in attendance.

Some lessons are never learned.

By Jay Bender Recently the same school board, this time with Kim Murphy as a member, went into
SOPA Attorney executive session in a conference room adjacent to the auditorium where the public

‘ portion of the board meeting had been conducted. Nearly 100 persons remained in the
auditorium awaiting the board's return.

At the conclusion of the executive session, one board member indicated that he wanted to talk about a
situation that had received some local notoriety, the denial of permission for a home-schooled student to
participate in the Junior ROTC program.

The issue wasn't on the board agenda.

The board chair, Robert Gantt, announced that the executive session was over, and directed that the
conference room door be opened so the discussion regarding the home-schooled student could be held "in
public."

Kim Murphy's tape recorder made an appearance. The board chair said the discussion could not be recorded,
but Ms. Murphy, having prevailed previously in the face of school board ignorance was not deterred. When
Ms. Murphy remained steadfast in her insistence that the discussion would be recorded, the board chair
adjourned the illegal meeting.

South Carolina's FOIA has some weaknesses, but on balance, the law -- if followed -- would provide citizens
with greater opportunities to learn and report on the activities of public bodies. The problem isn't with the
law. The problem is with a culture that allows public officials to make decisions outside the presence of the
public without challenge. The problem is a culture among public officials that convinces them they know what
is best for us, and they will tell us what decisions have been made in public business when it suits the public
officials.

Ms. Murphy knew the law, and challenged an illegal discussion of an item that wasn't on the agenda. Had the
issue of the home-schooled cadet applicant been on the agenda, the discussion would have been lawful only
in public. Simply opening the door to the conference room would not have made the discussion public.

If we could find one person on every council, board or commission who would pull out a tape recorder to
record illegal discussions, we would have many fewer secret decisions in South Carolina.

Some on the Lexington-Richland School Board don't like Kim Murphy because she has challenged decisions of
DHEC with respect to water quality issues in connection with a construction project at Chapin High School, and
those same folks are probably unhappy that she wouldn't acquiesce in an impermissible discussion outside of
public view. Fortunately for the public Ms. Murphy had the courage and the knowledge to challenge the chair.
We need more of that in South Carolina.

And by way of acknowledgement, | am defending Ms. Murphy in a suit brought by a non-profit corporation
and a former Chapin student claiming to have suffered financial losses in the millions of dollars personally
because she challenged the issuance of a permit to fill the headwaters of a stream so a parking lot for high
school students could be built. | also represented her when the school board last sued her to prevent the
lawful recording of a meeting. | like courage.

Atiachment (‘/ Is Ingluged with
; ofthe G ‘i‘./' [ -

the minutes
meeting, at the request of Board member
¢ N

&M .
pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann/530-4-90(a)(4)
and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority

did not approve, disapprove, of otherwise
act upan the contents of this attachment.



Print hitp://us mg204 mail yahoo.com/neo/launch? partner=sbc& rand=39f.

_____ Cirm ] .24 )
Subject: Re: For the Record Request 9 10 12 2 ? " /" f;7 ; r‘./:? o
From: ROBERT W GANTT (ganttrw@bellsouth.net) / - ;
To: movingmountainskwm®@gmail.com; :/\t_"if /'(i')r 7O/ 2o .

kwmurphy@lex5.k12.sc.us; kwmurphy@lexrich5.org; mbounds@lexrich5.org; bhwatsog@!exﬁ.ki2.ic.us;/)z i *&/‘:j W
bhwatson@lexrichS.org; ebaumgar@lexrich5.org; EWhite@lex5.k12.sc.us; ebaumgardner@sc.rr.com; / f"é e
Ce: ewhite@lexrich5.org; jhammond@lex5.k12.sc.us; janh08@aol.com; jturner@lex5.k12.sc.us; jimturnjr@gmail.com;
swhefner@gmail.com; shefner@lexrich5.org; edwhite@nelsonmullins.com; EFH@sc.rr.com;
ebaumgardner@sc.rr.com;

Bee: ganttrw@bellsouth.net; sstowers@lexrich5.org;

Msphmenl_j__.ia Included with

Date: Monday, September 24, 2012 9:38_iM the minutes of tha £ -2/ = 12—
) mesting, at the request of Board member
e lpct Cra
pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann, §30-4-80(a)(4)
and Board Pollcy BEDG, The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or atherwise
act upan the cantents of this attachment.

Ms. Murphy,

You have taken issue with my decision not to include in your documents to be submitted on your behalf into the
Board's public minutes Dr. Hefner's letter to the parents of a student who lives in our District. | told you it would not be
included because it was a student's educational record not to be released without written parental consent pursuant to
the Family and Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). You stated in response that | should redact the student's
name and address from the letter and that would suffice in meeting any concerns with the FERPA law, | have been
advised that deleting the student's name and address does not negate the fact that it would violate FERPA to place
the letter in the Board's public minutes or otherwise release it publicly, so | must continue to deny your request.

I have been advised that under FERPA, the District is prohibited from releasing personally identifiable
information derived from or contained in a student's education records, subject to certain exceptions, without
the written consent of parents. "Personally identifiable information" includes, among other things, "other
information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that would allow a
reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal knowledge of the relevant
circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable certainty; or information requested by a person who the
educational agency ... reasonably believes knows the identity of the student to whom the education record
relates." 34 C.F.R. §99.3.

In this case, if the Board were to make this letter public, even with the student's name and address

redacted, given the public attention that has already been brought to the matter, the letter could still be linked
to the student by a reasonable person in the community. For these reasons, its public release would violate
FERPA. Thus, it certainly would not be appropriate for the content of student educational records or
personally identifiable information regarding a student to be discussed publicly by the Board or placed in the
Board's minutes available to the public.

[ trust that you will understand that the Federal Law (FERPA) was put in place for a reason to protect students
and must be followed.

Robert Gantt

Item “For The Record” requested by Robert Gantt for attachment to the Minutes.

From: Kim Murphy <movingmountainskwm@gmail.com>
To: ROBERT W GANTT <ganttrw@bellsouth.net>

1 of3 9/24/2012 2:41 PM



Print

20f3

% wlammallasimnh? n =shod. =39f ..
Item “For The Record” requested by Robert Gantt for attachment to the Minutes. Ehete

Ce: Kim Murphy <kwmurphy @lex5.k12.sc.us>; Kim Murphy <kwmurphy@lexrich5.org>; Mark Bounds
<mbounds@lexrich5.org>; Beth Watson <bhwatson@lex5.k12.sc.us>; ""bhwatson@Iexrich5.org™
<phwatson@lexrich5.org>; ""ebaumgar@Iexrich5.org" <ebaumgar@lexrichb.org>; Ed White
<EWhite@lex5.k12.sc.us>; Ellen Baumgardner <ebaumgardner@sc.rr.com>; "'ewhite@lexrich5.org™
<ewhite@lexrich5.org>; Jan Hammond <jhammond@lex5.k12.sc.us>, JanH08 <janh08@aol.com>; Jim Turner
<jturner@lex5.k12.sc.us>; jimturnjr <jimturnjr@gmail.com>; Superintendent Steve Hefner <swhefner@gmail.com>;
Stephen Hefner <shefner@lexrichb.org>

Sent: Friday, September 21, 2012 6:32 PM

ubject: Re: For the Recor aque7 ]Z V& /({g,) 7”&/ §/ /‘é] é»-/ A’E/«‘Zé

Dear Mr. Gantt, 4015 C, ZolZ_

I would like the Superintendent’s letter dated August 16, 2012, denying the student access to JROTC,
recorded in the record of the minutes of September 10, 2012 as page 10 of 10. This is clearly a policy
issue that must be addressed and one that should have been brought before us in our legal update on
August 13, 2012 for our consideration, especially since the “Tebow” law (Act 203 of 2012) was signed
into law by the Governor on June 7, 2012, It is unfortunate that the student’s family had to hire an
attorney in order for their child to participate in a program that is afforded to him by law. Here is a link to
the law: Iy www.scstatehouse gov/sess119_2011-2012/bills/ 149 . htm

17

il S £ ei ,. 1
You may redact the student’s name and address from the Superintendent’s denial letter and that will
suffice in meeting any concerns with the FERPA law.

[ have attached the denial letter for other board members to examine, as well as the Attorney General’s
opinion stating that denying the homeschooled student the right to participate in the JROTC program or
other interscholastic opportunities violates the intent of the legislature.

[f you would like to make the change in the minutes and resubmit them to us before the board meetmg

that will alleviate the need for a motion to occur at the board meetmg / //I 74 /) ¢ /oS, / 74
S 7
o k{ /‘

< /1,/_; Cictatlign 7 j/{ff"
Regards,
 a= am w/ a /u')/ﬁ//é / /"‘- N /é”‘

/S _/dirzf 20 W

Kim Murphy / ) / / gc, ot /4 /Cf ”
; i / Le
ﬂfﬁ Mt -: //é o L’f&/'r {//L’ SR Z ) S [/f?z 7//*1 //L«u ic’/

On Fri, Sep 21, 2012 at 2: 03 PM ROBERT W GANTT <ganttrwi@bellsouth net> wrote:
o - - o mo)uw( ("-‘?"L{:{-

Attmahmant % le Ineluded with purduant to 8.C. Code Anr. §30-4-80(a)(4)
Ms. Mu e h Y, the minutes of the (_3'-1 /2 and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majarity
meeting, at the request of Board mamber did not approve, disapprove, of atherwise

act upon the contents of this attachment,

| reviewed your 12 page submission of documents you proposed to submit as your
"for the record" items in the Board's minutes for the September 10, 2012 Board
meeting. All of the documents that you provided for inclusion in the minutes were
attached, with one exception. Because the Board's minutes are considered public
records, | have excluded the letter that Dr. Hefner wrote to the parents, who are
residents in our District, regarding their child, as this letter is considered an
educational record of the student that should not be disclosed by the District
pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g.

9/24/2012 2:41 PM



Print

http://us.mg204.mail yahoo.com/neo/launch?.partner=sbc&. rand=39f.

Regardless of how you obtained a copy of the student's education record, | do not
believe that it is appropriate for the Board to publish a student's educational record
in its public Board minutes.

Protecting student rights, as required by law, is our obligation as Trustees of School
District 5.

Robert Gantt

Item “For The Record” requested by Robert Gantt for attachment to the Minutes.

Attsehmont __L_ In rncmded with

the minutes of the 9 -4
meeting, at the rrquesl of % f'ird member

EL{L

pursuant to 8,C, Code Ann. §30-4-80(2)(4)
and Board Policy BEDG, The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the cantents of this attachment,



-

s = 4 P
-

/ g 2] (/\_/)

e .? T

f

districtfve  ///au¥ S o

September 24, 2012 (_'”",b ,f’l ey o
D014, 2012
] # ”

Auinhmnni__[_g_iulnuludedmm fa" / lf: I-E‘_"J ({/ 5'.‘1 ,:757

the minutes of the _F24—(2

Mr. Jerry Bellune meeting, &t the request of Board member
Lexington Chronicle p__;ﬁrﬁ-mii%—uma et Code i § 0L

PO Box 1500 and Board Policy BEDG, The Boer:l mal}:riw
exl * 200 did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
LL.:\ll'iglm!, SC 29071 act upon the contents of this attachmertt.

Dear Mr. Bellune:

I am wriling in response Lo your e-mail dated September 20, 2012, in which you ollercd
the District the opportunity (o respond (o an article written by Jay Bender, the South Carolina Press
Association's attorney, and attorney for Kim Murphy, a Board member in School District Five. On behall
of the District. we are most appreciative of your providing the District with the opportunity to tell "the
ather side ol the story,"

As best as T understand i, Mr, Bender appears Lo be referring Lo a situation at the Board's
last meeting an September 10, 2012, in which a Board member asked the Superintendent for an updale on
a conlidential student matter, either near the end of, or at the end of, the Board's excculive session
meeting, While 1 do notagree with Mr. Bender's version of the Tucts, [ believe itis essential 1o address on
behall of the District our Tundamental disagreement with the main point of the article that Board
discussions aboul student matters should be conducted in public session. Specilically. Mr. Bender states.
"Had the issue of the home-schooled cadet applicant been on the agenda, the discussion would have been
lawlul only in public." This statement is legally inaccuraie,

Pursuant to a lederal law relerred 1o as the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Acl
("FERPA"), 20 U.S.C. §1232¢. the District is generally prohibited from releasing personally identifiable
information derived from or contained in o student’s education records, subject (o certain exceplions.,
without the prior writlen consent ol parents.  "Education records” are delined as those records, [liles.
documents, and other materials which contain information dircetly related 1o a student and are maintained
by an cducational agency, "Personally identifiable information” includes, among other things, "other
information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable 1o a specilie student that would allow a
reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal knowledge of the relevant
circumstances, o identifly the student with reasonable certainty: or information requesied by a person who
the educational agency .. reasonably believes knows the identity ol the student to whom the education
record relates.” 34 C.E.R, §99.3. Thus, it cerlainly would not be appropriaie for the content ol student
educational records or personally identifiable information regarding a student 1o be discussed publicly by
the Board. District policy JRAJRA-R (Student Records) clarifies the District’s procedures in this regard.
This is the case even if & matter has alrcady been discussed publicly by the student or parent.

ltem “For The Record” requested by Robert Gantt for attachment to the Minutes.

www.lex5.k12.5¢.us
1020 Duich Fork Road * Irmo, Scuth Carolina 28063 « (803) 732-8000



The FOIA specifically excludes from disclosure matlers exempted from disclosure by
statute or law, S.C. Code Ann. § 30-4-40(a)4). In this case, the statute would be FERPA. Further, it is
well established that a public body can hold a meeting closed o the public for discussion ol a malter

involving a student. S.C. Code § 30-4-70(a)(1). For these reasons, under the circumstances, Mr. Bender's
assertion is incorrect,

Sincerely,

J (o
i 18 A BT S
= f,f' o __,.r’!:/ ___.-I.";;’:../E"“
If. kbt

Ruobert W, Gantt
Chairman, Board ol Truslees

C: D3 Board of Trustees

Attmohment _J_L__ la ].5“‘93??,"?‘?,,

the minutes af the
meeting, at the request of Board member
piéuant fo g.c. Code Ann. § 30—4-90(3)_{4)
and Board Policy BEDG, The Board majarity

did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.

e Minutes.
ltem “For The Record” requested by Robert Gantt for attachment to th



Exhibit B



)

district five

OF LEXINGTON & RICHLAND COUN TIES

MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Board of Trustees
Stephen Hefner, Ed.D, Superintendent

FROM: Ms. Helen Anderson [
Chief Instructional Sekvices Officer
DATE: September 28, 2012
RE: October 8, 2012 Board Meeting, First Reading

Proposed Revisions and Additions Board Policies

-EXHIBIT B

The administration recommends the proposed revisions and additions to the
following Board Policies proceeds to Second Reading approval.

e Add New Administrative Rule ADF-R "School Wellness"
« Changes/Revisions to Policy JJE "Student Fundraising Activities"
e Changes/Revision to Policy JJE-R "Student Fundraising Activities"

Attachments:
Current Board Policies JJE, JJE-R

Recommended Board Policies ADF-R, JJE, JJE-R

| will be available at the October 8, 2012 Board Meeting to answer any questions

you may have.



New Administrative Rule

SCHOOL WELLNESS
ADF-R DRAFT

The policy governing the sale of all food and beverages to students during the school day will be
administered by the superintendent or his or her designee.

Food and beverages served and sold during the school day in the cafeteria, school canteens,
school stores, for fundraisers, vending machines, and anywhere else food or beverages are
served/sold to students must meet Institute of Medicine (IOM) recommended nutrition standards
for foods in schools and protect the health and safety of students.

The district will prohibit the sale of foods of minimum nutritional value in vending machines,
snack bars, school stores, concession stands, and a la carte offerings in the food service program
which students will have access to during the school day.

Elementary schools are prohibited from having vending machines, which students can access.

Policy assessment will be ongoing and the administrative rule may be amended as deemed
necessary.

Nutrition Guidelines:
a. Chewing gum, flavored ice bars, and candy will not be served or sold during the school
day and may not be used as a learning incentive or reward.

b. “Other foods™ may contain no more than 35 percent, by weight, of sugar or other artificial
sweeteners.

* Other foods will be defined as foods other than those served as part of the school
meal, including snacks from the vending machines, canteen sales, a la carte
sales, foods sold during school hours for fundraising purposes, and food for
special functions. Other foods will not include those items brought to school
by individual students for their own consumption.

* Foods must be in compliance with the Institute of Medicine (IOM)
recommended Nutrition Standards for Foods in Schools:
< 200 calories;
< 35% of total calories from fat;
< 10% of calories from saturated fats;
Zero trans fat (< (.5 g per serving)
< 35% of calories from total sugars: and
< 200 mg sodium.

Nuts and seeds are the exception and are permissible in
accordance with portion euidelines




¢. Student access to the sale and service of carbonated beverages will be prohibited.

d. Beverages offered must contain 100% of real fruit or vegetable juices to be served/sold.
Water will be accessible to all students.

e. Sports drinks may not be served / sold during the school day.

f. All beverage and food items must have nutrition specifications submitted to Student
Nutrition Services for review and final approval before being sold.

g. Student Nutrition Services reserves the right to refuse service of any food or beverage
items from vendors regardless of compliance of the policy guidelines. Student Nutrition
Services also reserves the right to limit quantities and exercise portion control on any
food/beverage items offered at school

Quality Foods:
a. School staff and district personnel will support Student Nutrition Services and the USDA
Nutrition programs by making the participation and return of meal eligibility applications
a high priority.

b. Student Nutrition Services will provide annual training to food service employees and
canteen managers according to current professional standards in food safety and service.

c. Food sales for fundraisers during the school day must meet the IOM guidelines. So as not
to interfere with the breakfast or lunch program, no sales can take place during the hours
of operation that breakfast and lunch are being served.

d. During the instructional day, toods that come from home with the purpose of sharing
among students must be store bought, packaged foods.

Eating Environment:
a. Administrators and staff will promote a school environment that supports the School
Wellness policy (ADF). Stalf is encouraged to model healthy eating by offering healthier
choices at school festivals, celebrations, meetings and other events.

b. Students will receive positive messages, both verbal and non-verbal about healthy eating
and physical activity throughout the school setting. School and district personnel will
help reinforce these positive messages.

¢. Students, parents, administrators and staff will have access to valid and useful health
information and health promotion products and services. The district will provide
nutritional information that will encourage parents and district personnel to provide
nutritious foods for their children and themselves.



Nutrition Education:
a. The Office of Instruction will oversee the integration of nutrition education into the
comprehensive health education program. Student Nutrition Services will collaborate
with the Office of Instruction to enhance nutrition education.

b. Students in grades K-8 will receive comprehensive health education annually that includes
nutrition education, with students in grades K-5 receiving nutrition education weekly. *

. Al least one time in grades 9-12. students will receive comprehensive health education that
includes nutrition education, *

d. Professional development will be provided for teachers and staff on the relationship

between physical activity and nutrition for academic performance and healthy
lifestyles. ™

“Indicates compliance with CHEA, SH&FA and SDE requirements



Definitions:

Nutrition Education- Sequential instructional program that provides knowledge and teaches
skills to help students adopt and maintain lifelong healthy eating habits.

Institute of Medicine (I0OM) Nutrition Standards for Foods in Schools — Report that provided
science-based recommendations about appropriate nutritional standards for the availability, sale,
content, and consumption of competitive foods at school .

Food of Minimal Nutritional Value- Foods that provide less than five percent of the U.S.
recommended daily allowance per serving of protein, vitamin A, vitamin C, niacin, riboflavin
thiamin, calcium and iron.

Reward — Something given as a learning incentive or in recognition of good behavior or a job
well done. This includes class parties and holiday celebrations.



CURRENT POLICY

Policy JJE Student Fundraising Activities
Issued 10/09
Purpose: To establish the basic structure for the conduct of student fundraising activities.

Schools will keep fundraising campaigns to a minimum so as not to impair the efficiency and
effectiveness of the education program. In addition, schools may undertake such campaigns only under
the following circumstances.

Students in the elementary schools will not participate in fundraising activities in which they would be
selling items or soliciting contributions, pledges or orders. However, these students may be used as
couriers between school and home of information, order blanks and materials pertaining to fundraising
activities sponsored by the school and school-related organizations such as the PTO/PTA.

« The principal will approve and supervise each campaign.

»  Students may not participate in fundraising activities during school hours without the express
approval of the principal.

«  Students will not solicit personal contributions to meet the basic needs of the school or to finance
extracurricular activities.

« Fundraising campaigns sponsored within the school must be in support of specific student
activities or projects that will contribute to the improvement of the school's program.

No student or organization may sell, distribute or advertise services, written materials or items from
private sources on school premises or in the school or school district without the permission of the
principal of the school involved and the superintendent.

Organizations or students seeking to distribute materials to students unrelated to the individual school or
school district must have the permission of the superintendent.

Adopted 8/1/73; Revised 11/16/81, 11/21/83, 4/28/86, 10/26/09
Legal references:
S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:

Section 16-17-420 - Board can regulate any activity that would disturb school.

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES



Policy
Sugeested Revisions

STUDENT FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES
Code JJE Issued DRAFT

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for the conduct of student fundraising activities.

Schools will keep fundraising campaigns to a minimum so as not to impair the efficiency and
effectiveness of the education program. In addition, schools may undertake such campaigns only
under the following circumstances.

Students in the elementary schools will not participate in fundraising activities in which they
would be selling items or soliciting contributions, pledges or orders. However, these students
may be used as couriers between school and home of information, order blanks and materials
pertaining to fundraising activities sponsored by the school and school-related organizations such
as the PTO/PTA.

e The principal must approve and supervise each campaign. Fundraising campaigns may not
take place without written approval by the principal.

e Students may not participate in fundraising activities during school hours without the express
approval of the principal.

e Students will not solicit personal contributions to meet the basic needs of the school or to
finance extracurricular activities.

e Fundraising campaigns sponsored within the school must be in support of specific student
activities or projects that will contribute to the improvement of the school's program.

e Food sales for fundraisers during the school day must meet the Institute of Medicine (IOM)
guidelines. So as not to interfere with the breakfast or lunch program, no sales can take place
while breakfast and lunch are being served.

e Schools and organizations planning fundraisers are discouraged from selling food items that
do not meet the IOM Nutritional Food Standards for Foods in Schools.

No student or organization may sell, distribute or advertise services, written materials or items
from private sources on school premises or in the school or school district without the permission
of the principal of the school involved and the superintendent or his/her designee.

Organizations or students seeking to distribute materials to students unrelated to the individual
school or school district must have the permission of the superintendent or his/her designee.

Adopted 8/1/73; Revised 11/16/81, 11/21/83, 4/28/86, 10/26/09

Legal references:

A. 8. C. Code, 1976, as amended:
1. Section 16-17-420 - Board can regulate any activity that would disturb school.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



CURRENT POLICY

AR JJE-R Student Fundraising Activities
Issued 10/09

All fundraising activities that take place must be conducted by an organization, not an individual. Any
club or organization requesting permission to hold a fundraiser must have a valid charter and board-
approved bylaws and have been in existence for at least four months prior to making the request. The
principal must approve the fundraising activities of both parent/legal guardian and student-governed
organizations. The approval must be in writing and issued prior to the beginning of the fundraising
activity.

Organizations must make written requests for fundraising activities to include the following.
» the inclusive dates of the activity or sales campaign
+ the type of activity clearly explained
« name of supplier of sales items or activity
* intended use of the money raised
* how this use of funds can improve the school
Principals should limit each club or organization to one fundraising project per school year.

All information, advertising, tickets and other materials used for promotion of the activity must carry the
name of the sponsoring club or organization. Organizations may not use a board endorsement on any
materials, notices or advertising without the specific written consent of the board.

No teacher or employee of the district will be required to participate in any fundraising activity
sponsored by a parent/legal guardian or student group such as, but not limited to, PTA, band boosters,
etc.

Issued 10/26/09

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES



Administrative Rule
Suggested Revisions

STUDENT FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES
Code JJ E"'R Issued DRAFT

All fundraising activities that take place must be conducted by an organization, not an individual.
Any club or organization requesting permission to hold a fundraiser must have a valid charter
and board-approved bylaws and have been in existence for at least four months prior to making
the request. The principal must approve the fundraising activities of both parent/legal guardian
and student-governed organizations. The approval must be in writing and issued prior to the
beginning of the fundraising activity.

Organizations must make written requests for fundraising activities to include the following.

the inclusive dates of the activity or sales campaign
the type of activity clearly explained

name of supplier of sales items or activity

intended use of the money raised

how this use of funds can improve the school

Principals should limit each club or organization to one fundraising project per school year.

All information, advertising, tickets and other materials used for promotion of the activity must
carry the name of the sponsoring club or organization. Organizations may not use a board
endorsement on any materials, notices or advertising without the specific written consent of the
board.

No teacher, o employee or student of the district will be required to participate in any
fundraising activity sponsored by a parent/legal guardian or student group such as, but not limited
to, PTA, band boosters, etc.

Issued 10/26/09

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



Exhibit C



EXHIBIT C

d)

district five

OF LEXINGTON & RICHLAND COUNTIES

MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Board of Trustees
Stephen Hefner, Ed.D, Syperintendent

FROM: Ms. Helen Anderson
Chief Instructional Services Officer
DATE: September 28, 2012
RE: October 8, 2012 Board Meeting, Discussion Item

Proposed Revisions and Additions Board Policies

The administration recommends the proposed revisions and additions to the
following Board Policies proceeds to First Reading approval.

e Replace Policy IHG "Secondary Education" with new Policy IKG
"Secondary Education"

e Replace Policy IHF "Graduation Requirements" with new Policy IKF
"Graduation Requirements"”

* Replace Policy IHF-R "Graduation Requirements/Diplomas" with new
Policy IKF-R "Graduation Requirements"”

« Add New Policy IHAQ "Career/Transition to Work Education”

Attachments:
Current Board Policies IHG, IHF, and IHF-R

Recommended Board Policies IKG, IKF, IKF-R and IHAQ

| will be available at the October 8, 2012 Board Meeting to answer any questions
you may have.



CURRENT POLICY

Policy IHG Secondary Education
Issued 5/03

Because of its commitment to academic excellence, the board of trustees adopts the following provisions
1o assure maximum educational opportunities for secondary students.

Course load

All students in grades 9-11will enroll in at least eight classes, seven of which are credit bearing courses.
Students classitied as seniors must enroll in at least six credit bearing courses.

Extended studies diploma

Students are to be encouraged to elect a program of studies that will prepare them for success in college
and satisfy recommendations of the South Carolina State Board of Education. An optional School
District Five diploma will be awarded to those students who pursue an extended program of studies to
include completion of at least 28 Carnegie units of credit as listed below and a community service

project each year in grades 9-12.
» four units of English
« at least four units of mathematics including Algebra I, Algebra Il and Geometry
« at least four units of laboratory science
* at least three units in the same foreign language

* four units in social studies including U.S. History, American Government/ Economics and two
others

+ one unit of computer technology including satisfaction of a technology proficiency requirement
« one unit of physical education or JROTC
« one unit in occupational education or one unit in visual and/or performing arts
» additional electives selected by the student
Concurrent college enrollment

Advanced students who complete the regular high school program in a subject area may enroll
concurrently in high school and college courses as long as course load requirements are met. The high
school's master schedule will not be altered to accommodate the student seeking concurrent enrollment.
Approval will be obtained from the principal prior to enrollment in the college course(s). All expenses
incurred by participation in such courses will be borne by the student or parent.

As many as two Carnegie units for college courses may be earned and applied to the 24 units required
for a state high school diploma by students in grades 9-12 and/or adult education programs. A three-
semester hour college course will transfer as 1/2-Carnegie unit. A six-semester hour college course will
transfer as one-Carnegie unit of credit. Only courses applicable to baccalaurcate degrees, or 1o associate
in arts or associate in science degrees, offercd by institutions in the state which are accredited by the
Commission of Colleges of the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools may be accepted for
credit. Units carned for college courses may not be substituted for courses of similar content offered in
the high school's curriculum.



Early dismissal/late arrivals

There will be no permanent late arrivals or early dismissals except those approved by a special
committee at each school. Exceptions will be typically limited to students involved in school sponsored
work-study programs, those enrolled in college courses, and those involved in committee-approved
apprenticeships, mentorships and/or internships.

Recognition program

Honor graduates will be recognized by each high school at graduation. Honor graduates are students
who rank in the top 15% of the class or earn a 4.0 with a cumulative grade point average or above as
defined by the state uniform grading scale. The top 5% of students in a graduating class will be
designated as distinguished honor graduates. The honor speakers for the commencement exercises will
be selected by a committee of students and teachers at each school.

(Cf. IHC, JBF)
Adopted 6/16/86; Revised 1/25/88, 2/6/89, 1/8/96, 4/3/00, 5/19/03

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES



New Policy

SECONDARY EDUCATION
Coxle IKG Tssued DRAFT

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for the educational program for secondary students.

Because of its commitment to academic excellence, the board adopts the following provisions to
assure maximum educational opportunities for secondary students.

Course of study

All students in grades 9 through 11 will enroll in at least eight classes, seven of which are credit
bearing courses. Students classified as seniors must enroll in at least six credit bearing courses.
The course of study for students with disabilities who are not working toward a high school
diploma will be determined by the IEP committee.

Extended studies diploma

Students are to be encouraged to elect a program of study that will prepare them for success in
college and satisfy recommendations of the South Carolina State Board of Education. An
optional School District Five diploma will be awarded to those students who pursue an extended
program of studies to include completion of at least 28 Carnegie units of credit as listed below
and a community service project each year in grades 9 through 12. Guidance counselors will be
responsible for approving community service projects.

e four units of English

e at least four units of mathematics including Algebra I, Algebra Il and Geometry

e at least four units of laboratory science

e at least three units in the same foreign language

e four units in social studies including U.S. History, American Government/Economics and
two others

e one unit of computer technology including satisfaction of a technology proficiency
requirement

e one unit of physical education or JROTC

e one unit in occupational education or one unit in visual and/or performing arts
e additional electives selected by the student

Concurrent college enrollment

Students who complete the regular high school program in a subject area may enroll concurrently
in high school and college courses as long as course load requirements are met. The high
school’s master schedule will not be altered to accommodate the student seeking concurrent
enrollment. Approval will be obtained from the principal prior to enrollment in the college
course(s). All expenses incurred by participation in such courses will be borne by the student or
parent/legal guardian.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties  (see next page)



PAGE 2 - IKG - SECONDARY EDUCATION

As many as two Carnegie units for college courses may be earned and applied to the 24 units
required for a state high school diploma by students in grades 9-12 and/or adult education
programs. A three-semester hour college course will transfer as 1.0 Carnegie unit. Only courses
applicable to baccalaureate degrees, or to associate in arts or associate in science degrees, offered
by institutions in the state which are accredited by the Commission of Colleges of the Southern
Association of Colleges and Schools may be accepted for credit. Units earned for college courses
may not be substituted for courses of similar content offered in the high school’s curriculum.

Early dismissal/late arrivals

There will be no permanent late arrivals or early dismissals except those approved by a special
committee at each school. Exceptions will be typically limited to students involved in school
sponsored work-study programs, those enrolled in college courses, and those involved in
committee-approved apprenticeships, mentorships and/or internships.

Recognition program

Honor graduates will be recognized by each high school at graduation. Honor graduates are
students who rank in the top 15 percent of the class or earn a 4.0 with a cumulative grade point
average or above as defined by the state uniform grading scale. The top five percent of students
in a graduating class will be designated as distinguished honor graduates, The speakers for the
commencement exercises (chosen from the distinguished honor graduates) will be selected by a
committee of the distinguished honor graduates and teachers at each school.

The student must be enrolled for a minimum of one semester immediately preceding his/her
graduation to be considered for recognition as an honor or distinguished honor graduate.
Units earned in a summer school program do not satisfy this requirement.

(Cf. IKF)

Adopted 6/16/86; Revised 1/25/88, 2/6/89, 1/8/96, 4/3/00, 5/19/03, "

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



CURRENT POLICY

Policy IHF Graduation Requirements

Issued 6/01

The South Carolina State Board of Education regulates the South Carolina State High School Diploma.
A state high school diploma from School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties is based
upon the satisfactory completion of the number of units required by state law. A unit of work is the
amount of credit earned when the student satisfuactorily completes 120 hours of instruction in a given

subject arca.

Students in the district may graduate from high school by meeting the requirements outlined in
administrative rule [HF-R.

Students must meet all state requirements for graduation in order to participate in School District Five
graduation exercises. for the 2001-02 school year only, any student who can graduate by completing two
credits in summer school 2002 may participate in graduation exercises in 2002, After 2002, students
must complete all state requirements in order to participate in School District Five graduation exercises.

(CF. IDAA)
Adopted 5/28/84: Revised 2/6/89, 4/22/96, 4/13/98, 6/11/01

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES



New Policy

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Code I KF Issued D RAFT

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for high school graduation.

The South Carolina State Board of Education regulates the South Carolina State High School
Diploma. A state high school diploma from this district is based upon the satisfactory completion
of the number of units required by state law. A unit of work is the amount of credit earned when
the student satisfactorily completes 120 hours of instruction in a given subject area. The student
must pass both parts of the South Carolina high school exit examination in addition to earning
the required number of prescribed units.

Students in the district may graduate from high school by meeting the requirements outlined in
administrative rule IKF-R.

In order to participate in School District Five graduation exercises, students must have earned
one of the following: SC High School Diploma; State Certificate; or District Certificate.

Principals shall have the discretion to prohibit a student from participating in graduation
exercises where the student (1) has engaged in misconduct on or off school grounds; (2) has
monetary debt to the district: (3) fails to participate in graduation practice; or (4) where the
principal otherwise determines that it would not be in the best interest for the student to
participate in graduation exercises. The principal’s decision shall be final,

Adopted 5/28/04; Revised 2/6/89, 4/22/96. 4/13/98, /6/11/01, "

Legal relerences:

A. S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:
I, Section59-18-310(B) - Statewide assessment program.

2. Section 59-26-70 - No commission or agency lo require foreign language as a prerequisite to
receive a regular high school diploma.

3. Section 59-39-100 - Diplomas to be uniform in every respect; units required to earn a diploma.

4. Section 50-29-110 - Accelerated program ol study.

5. Section 59-29-80 - Courses in physical education; ROTC program.

6. Section 59-29-190 - Advanced placement courses for academically talented students.

7. Section 59-17-130 - American sign language as world language credit.

B. State Board of Education Regulations:

I. R43-259 - Graduation requirements.
R43-262 - Assessment program.
R43-234 - Defined program, grades 9-12.

LFS IR o)

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



CURRENT POLICY

AR THF-R Graduation Requirements/Diplomas

[ssued 6/01]

For students enrolled for the first time in the ninth grade class of 1997-98 and thereafter, South Carolina
law requires completion of 24 units for graduation.

The credits required for graduation are distributed as follows (Total - 24).
English/language arts 4 units
Mathematics 4 units
Science 3 units
U.S. History and Constitution | unit
Economics (1/2 unit) &
Government (1/2 unit) | unit
Other social studies 1 unit
Physical education or ROTC 1 unit
Computer science (including keyboarding) 1 unit
Foreign language or occupational education 1 unit
Electives 7 units
Total 24 units

A student first enrolled in the ninth grade prior to the 1997-98 school year is eligible to receive a 20-unit
high school diploma if all prescribed unit and exit examination requirements are mel.

For adult education students enrolled on or after July 1, 2000 and receiving a diploma, the credits are
distributed as follows (Total - 24).

English/language arts 4 units

Mathematics 4 units

Science 3 units

U.S. History and Constitution 1 unit

Economics (1/2 unit) &

Government (1/2 unit) [ unit

Other social studies 1 unit

Computer science (including keyboarding) 1 unit
Electives 9 units

24 units



A student first enrolled in adult education on or before June 30, 2000, is eligible to receive a 20-unit
state high school diploma provided all prescribed unit and exit examinations requirements are met on or

before June 30, 2001,

For students in a college preparatory track, as defined by the state board of education, one unit must be
carned in a foreign language (most four-year colleges/universities require at least two units of the same
foreign language), and for students in a technology preparation program, as defined by the state board,
one occupational unit must be earned.

The student must demonstrate computer literacy before graduation.

Exil examination

All 10th grade students are required to take an exit examination. Passage of the exit examination is a
condition for the receipt of a state high school diploma. This requirement also applies to students in an
adult education program who are seeking a diploma.

Students who do not pass the exit examination must receive academic assistance in the area(s) not
passed.

Students who do not pass the state exit examination in the 10th grade must retake the test in the 11th
grade and may retake the test twice in the 12th grade. The district will award an appropriate state
certificate to those students who must pass the exit examination to receive a diploma, but fail to do so.
The certificate will indicate the number of credits earned and grades completed.

A student who has earned the required number of units but who fails to pass the exit exam by the end of
his/her senior year may enroll in adult education to continue with academic assistance and 1o re-take the
exit exam. il the student is under the age of 21, he/she may continue in school until he/she reaches 21,

whichever occurs first.
The district will do the following.

Implement administration and security measures established by the state board of education for the
purpose of the exit examination.

Establish a procedure for written notification of students and parents by the seventh grade or upon
entry into District Five schools, whichever comes [irst.

Publicize the exit examination schedules.

Recommend for a South Carolina State High School Diploma only those students who pass all
subtests of the exit examination.

Provide academic assistance related to the subtests not passed.

Identify disabled students who are not candidates for a high school diploma and for whom the exit
exam is not appropriate.

High school credit for college work

Students in grades 9 through 12 and/or adult education programs can earn credits for college course
work that can be applied to the required number of units for a state high school diploma. The following

conditions must apply.

Approved courses may be offered through distance learning and cooperative agreements with higher



education. A three-hour college course will transfer 1/2 Carnegie unit. Approval will be obtained
from the principal prior to enrollment in the college course(s). All expenses incurred by participation
in such courses will be borne by the student or parent.

Only courses applicable to baccalaureate degrees or to associate in arts or associate in science degrees
offered by institutions in the state which are accredited by the Commission on Colleges or the
Southern Association of Colleges and Schools may be accepted for Carnegie units of credit.

Tuition and other college course fees will be at the expense of the individual student or his/her parent.

Issued 11/17/86; Revised 2/6/89, 6/11/01

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES



New Administrative Rule

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Cenle IKF'R Issued DRAFT

A student must earn 24 units of credit in state-approved courses for graduation.

The unit requirements are distributed as follows.

S Credit

Subject Units
English/language arts 4
Mathematics 4
Science 3
U.S. History and Constitution l
Economics 1/2
US Government 1/2
Other social studies |
PE or junior ROTC |
Computer science (including keyboarding) |
Foreign language or |
Career and technology education
Electives 7

Total 24

The student must complete a study of and pass a final examination on the provisions and
principles of the United States Constitution, the Declaration of Independence. the Federalist
papers and American institutions and ideals. This instruction must be given for a period of at
least one year or its equivalent, either within the required course U.S. History and Constitution or

within another course.

The student must pass both parts of the South Carolina high school exit examination in addition
to earning the required number of prescribed units.

Students who wish to pursue early graduation must complete an early graduation plan with their

guidance counselor by June 30) prior to their early graduation. The principal must approve all

requests for early graduation. The principal’s decision shall be final.

Awarding of high school credit

A school also may award and accept credit towards a high school diploma for the following.

e in units of one-fourth, one-half and a whole; for example, an academic-standards based
course that requires a minimum of 120 hours of instruction (one unit), 60 hours of instruction

(one-half unit) and 30 hours of instruction (one-fourth unit)

* a course that has been approved by the state department of education in a proficiency-based
system

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties  (see next page)



PAGE 2 - IKF-R - GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

those gateway courses that are a part of the end-of-course examination program only if the
student takes the course approved by the school in which he/she is enrolled and meets all the
stipulated requirements of the program

courses in summer programs that meet all the regulatory requirements for courses offered for
students in grades 9-12

a course that i1s approved by the district - whether the school offers the particular course or
not - if the student receives prior approval

a course that the student takes in an approved adult education program if the course is
approved by the superintendent or his/her designee

locally designed subject-area courses, elective courses and CATE courses under conditions as
outlined in state board regulation

the PE credit if the PE course meets all statutory requirements including the personal fitness
and wellness component and the lifetime fitness component

the one-half unit of credit carried by the keyboarding course for half the required computer
science unit

a college course, approved by the principal, that a student in grades 9-12 takes under the
district’s dual credit arrangement

Adult education

For adult education students receiving a diploma, the unit requirements are distributed as
follows.

T Credit
Subject Units
English/language arts -+
Mathematics 4
Science 3
U.S. History and Constitution 1
Economics 1/2
US Government 1/2
Other social studies |
Computer science (including keyboarding) I
Electives 9
Total 24

Exit examination

For purposes of state testing requirements, students in their second year of high school
enrollment beginning with grade nine are required to take an exit examination consisting of tests
in English/language arts, mathematics, science and social studies based on state curriculum
standards. Passage of the exit examination is a condition for the receipt of a state high school
diploma. This requirement also applies to students in an adult education program who are
seeking a diploma.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties  (sce next page)



Students who do not pass the exit examination must receive academic assistance in the area(s)
not passed.

Any student who fails to pass the exit examination and who is actively enrolled in school will
have two opportunities per year (spring and fall) to pass an equivalent form of the failed part or
parts of the examination by meeting the minimum performance standard in effect at the time of
the test administration,

An administration of the exit examination may be available during the summer after the twelfth
grade for students who have met all other requirements for graduation and who were actively
enrolled in school.

The district will award an appropriate state certificate to those students who must pass the exit
examination to receive a diploma, but fail to do so. The certificate will indicate the number of
credits earned and grades completed. A student who has earned the required number of units but
who fails to pass the exit exam may enroll in adult education to continue with academic
assistance and to re-take the exit exam. If the student is under the age of 21, he/she may continue
in school until he/she passes the exit exam and receives a diploma or until he/she reaches 21,
whichever occurs first.

The district will do the following.

e Implement administration and security measures established by the state board of education
for the purpose of the exit examination.

e Establish a procedure for written notification of students and parents/legal guardians by the
seventh grade or upon entry into the district schools, whichever comes first.

e Publicize the exit examination schedules.

e Recommend for a South Carolina State High School Diploma only those students who pass
all parts of the exit examination,

¢ Provide academic assistance related to the parts not passed.

e Advise students who have met all other requirements for graduation but have not passed the
exit examination of other alternatives.

Districts will identify students who meet the participation criteria for alternative assessment.

Students with an IEP may take the exit exam with accommodations and/or modifications

determined to be appropriate by the IEP team and allowable by state and federal statutes and
regulations.

Issued 11/17/86; Revised 2/6/89, 6/11/01, "

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



New Policy

CAREER/TRANSITION TO WORK EDUCATION
cote IHAQ 1.0 DRAFT

Purpose: To establish the board's vision for career/transition-to-work education.

Career education is the development of the skills and knowledge through which individuals may
fulfill their own unique needs with regard to their occupational role, citizen responsibility, leisure
activity and family development.

The board is committed to and supports the development and implementation of a statewide
initiative to provide students with strong academics and real-world problem solving skills to
meel the workforce needs of business and industry.

The district will adhere to the Education and Economic Development Act of 2005 through the
implementation of the following components.

Career clusters and state academic standards

A curriculum aligned with state academic standards will be provided to students through career
clusters with individualized educational, academic and career-oriented choices and greater
exposure to career information and opportunities.

Career guidance and counseling/development
The district will lay the foundation for the clusters of study system for students as follows.

e Provide career awareness activities in elementary school (K-5).
Identify interests and abilities in middle school and align these with clusters of study for the
development of individual graduation plans.

* Provide guidance and curricula for high school students to complete individual graduation
plans.

» Provide a variety of work-exploration experiences such as traditional mentoring, shadowing,
service learning, school-based activities, internships and cooperative education, youth
apprenticeships and extended learning opportunities.

The district will utilize the High Schools That Work (HSTW) whole-school reform model in its
high schools or obtain approval from the state department of education to use another cluster or
major organizational model.

Guidance and counseling model

The district will follow standards and strategies provided by the state department of education’s
guidance and counseling model in developing and implementing a comprehensive guidance and
counseling program. This model will include a career guidance component for students at the
high school level.

Parental participation
The district will encourage parental participation in the clusters of study system by requiring
annual parent counseling conferences for students beginning with the eighth grade and

continuing through high school. The purpose of these conferences will be to assist in the
decisions concerning career choices and the creation of individual graduation plans.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties  (see next page)



PAGE 2 - IHAQ - CAREER/TRANSITION TO WORK
EDUCATION

The district may provide guidance and counseling sessions during hours that are not typically part
of the workday, such as in the evenings or on Saturday.

Academic assistance programs (at-risk students)

The district will implement in each high school one or more evidenced-based program models
for at-risk students to ensure that these students are given the opportunity to complete the
requirements for a state high school diploma and to build skills that prepare them to enter the job
market successfully.

CI. 1G, IGCA, IHAK, IHBC, IHCA, IKF, JLD, KB

Adopted "

Legal references:

A. S.C, Code of Laws 1976, as amended;
I.  Section 59-59-10, et. seq. - South Carolina Education and Economic Development Act.

B. State Board of Education Regulations:
I. R43-205 - Administrative and professional personnel qualifications, dutics and workloads.

2. R43-234 - Delined program, grades 9-12.

C. South Carolina State Department ol Education:
I. South Carolina Education and Economic Development Act Guidelines (2006).

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties





